
Adopted:  April 28, 2016 – As Written 

 
CONWAY PLANNING BOARD 

 
MINUTES 

 
APRIL 14, 2016 

 
  
 PAGES 
 
  1  Review and Acceptance of Minutes 

 March 24, 2016 – As Written 
 
  1  Fram Real Estate Development Co., LLC (File #FR16-02) 
    – Full Site Plan Review (PID 235-37) 

 Conditionally Approved 
 
  5  Public Hearing – Tree Removal on a Scenic Road –  
    RSA 231:158 

 Approved 
 
  6  Other Business 

 April 26th Board of Selectmen’s Meeting  
   



Adopted:  April 28, 2016 – As Written 

CONWAY PLANNING BOARD 
 

MINUTES 
 

APRIL 14, 2016 
 
A meeting of the Conway Planning Board was held on Thursday, April 14, 2016 beginning at 
7:00 pm at the Conway Town Office in Center Conway, NH.  Those present were:  Chair, Robert 
Drinkhall; Selectmen’s Representative, Steven Porter; Vice Chair, Steven Hartmann; Secretary, 
Kevin Flanagan; Raymond Shakir; Planning Director, Thomas Irving; and Recording Secretary, 
Holly Meserve. 
 
REVIEW AND ACCEPTANCE OF MINUTES 
 
Mr. Porter made a motion, seconded by Mr. Shakir, to approve the Minutes of March 24, 
2016 as written.  Motion carried with Mr. Flanagan abstaining from voting.  
 
FRAM REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT CO., LLC (FILE #FR16-02) – FULL SITE PLAN 
REVIEW (PID 235-37) 
 
Josh McAllister of HEB Engineers appeared before the Board.  This is an application to 
demolish the existing building and construct a new 7,382 square foot auto parts retail store with 
associated infrastructure at 1921 White Mountain Highway, North Conway (PID 235-37).  Mr. 
Porter made a motion, seconded by Mr. Shakir, to accept the application of Fram Real 
Estate Investment Co. LLC for a Full Site Plan Review as complete.  Motion unanimously 
carried. 
 
Mr. Drinkhall stated that the Planning Board can only adhere to the regulations that are in place; 
and this Board has nothing to do with a Historic Commission, that is up to the Board of 
Selectmen.  Mr. McAllister stated the site currently houses a vacant restaurant and the plan is to 
remove both buildings on site as well as the existing pavement and then reconstruct the site.  Mr. 
McAllister stated the back wall of the building will be used as a retaining wall against the steep 
slope; this will prevent the elimination of trees at the back of the lot.   
 
Mr. Drinkhall asked for Board comment; Mr. Shakir stated considering most of the people here 
this evening are here to save the existing building, and since it is not the purview of this Board, is 
the owner willing to move the current structure to another site.  Mr. McAllister stated there are 
two parties involved, the owner and the developer.  Mr. McAllister stated the organization 
buying the property is willing to let someone move the building; for their purpose, they need to 
have the building off the site. 
 
Mr. Drinkhall asked for public comment; Brian Wiggin stated he has heard stories regarding the 
Homestead from when he was little; Redstone used to be very isolated from the Village and they 
were always so glad to see the lights on at what is now known as the Homestead.  Mr. Wiggin 
stated we have found that the original owner, Richard Eastman, was an original proprietor of this 
area and you cannot go any further back than the Homestead.  Mr. Wiggins stated that he thinks 



Adopted: April 28, 2016 – As Written 
CONWAY PLANNING BOARD – APRIL 14, 2016 

PAGE 2 OF 6 

 

we need to preserve what buildings we have left; and he understands why people get frustrated 
with it.  Mr. Wiggin stated there are a lot of possibilities for this structure, and Conway citizens 
care enough to come together to help finance the move of this structure; we would love to see the 
building preserved in some way. 
 
Jeff Lathrop, of Echo Acres Road, asked what is the setback from the road.  Mr. McAllister 
answered 25-feet from the road right-of-way.  Mr. Lathrop stated this project will really be 
changing the look of the site; over time there have been a lot of concessions made for businesses 
at the expense of the residents.  Mr. Lathrop stated with the construction of Dunkin Donuts and 
the 99 Restaurant it has become a major problem at that intersection.  Mr. Lathrop stated there 
were mistakes made with the Dunkin Donuts site which has created the potential for accidents.   
 
Mr. Lathrop stated he is concerned with the traffic entering and exiting Echo Acres Road, the 
Dunkin Donuts site, the 99 Restaurant site and the new Auto Zone site.  Mr. Lathrop asked if 
consideration has been given to traffic in that area as it is an issue.  Mr. Lathrop stated he hopes 
you think of the residents who are trying to live their lives, the safety issues are real and it should 
be designed aesthetically and for traffic safety.  Mr. Drinkhall stated the traffic count is less for 
an auto parts store than for a restaurant.  Mr. Lathrop stated there are three substantial businesses 
at this intersection. 
 
Mark Hounsell stated we have lost the strip; the North Conway strip is a creation after he was a 
child, but we haven’t lost the building that is now known as the Homestead.  Mr. Hounsell stated 
it is encouraging to hear the owner is willing to work with us to move the building; if you are 
going to do it and there are people who are serious to do it, that building could be saved and 
worth preserving.  Mr. Hounsell stated if there are people serious about it, he thinks he can help 
and they can contact him.   
 
Helen Barnes stated if we cannot save this house it is time to save other houses.  Ms. Barnes 
asked if they have time to save this building.  Mr. McAllister stated that he cannot speak to the 
developer’s construction schedule, but not sure there is a lot of time as they are expecting to 
begin construction the second half of summer.   
 
Kim Beals stated this has come up to this community only within the last week; and she 
understands that the Planning Board is guided by what the Town has voted in.  Ms. Beals stated 
all of our hands are tied, but for Plan B, which is to move the house, we need more time.  Ms. 
Beals asked if the house could stay there and be built around.  Ms. Beals stated this building is a 
lot older than any other building; the demolition cost is going to be at least $35,000, they could 
give it to us as a donation to help move the building.  Ms. Beals stated that she has a strong and 
sincere compassion for this community; and she would love to work with whomever, and 
whatever group we can form to save the Homestead.   
 
Ms. Barnes stated Amos Barnes, who was her great-great-grandfather, built the Homestead 
house.  Ms. Barnes stated he fought at the Battle of Bunker Hill, served during the Revolution 
under George Washington, and crossed the Delaware.  Ms. Barnes stated after the war his bounty 
land payments bought him his land in North Conway; which also included the now Schoolhouse 



Adopted: April 28, 2016 – As Written 
CONWAY PLANNING BOARD – APRIL 14, 2016 

PAGE 3 OF 6 

 

Motel, the original church where 7-eleven is now and the cemetery where is buried.  Ms. Barnes 
stated he was a war hero who helped find this Town and this house has the most authenticity left.  
Ms. Barnes stated Amos Barnes deserves our respect by preserving the Homestead.   
 
Ken Rancourt stated he is the President of the Conway Historical Society, however, he is 
speaking on his own behalf; there is potential for accidents in that area, has the State required 
any traffic studies.  Mr. Rancourt stated whenever you have a situation like this, the State may 
require a traffic light.   
 
Mr. Rancourt stated he is now speaking with his Historical Society hat on and stated that the 
Historical Society helped save the old firehouse in Conway Village.  Mr. Rancourt asked if it is 
possible to lift the building and put in a new foundation and use it as a benefit for the Town.  Mr. 
Rancourt stated he thinks it is possible, but, unfortunately, the Historical Society does not have 
the funds to do it again.   
 
Ted Sares stated having been on this Board for nine years he understands the limits of your 
purview, however, the issue with bobcats has come to an end so it shows what can be done when 
people have compassion for something.  Mr. Sares stated another location for this type of 
business would be on Eastman Road where there is a cluster of other automotive businesses and 
there are several vacant buildings as well.  Mr. Sares stated that would be the ideal place rather 
than on the strip.  Mr. Sares stated we should be preserving some of the history of the Town.   
 
Steve Steiner stated he is an alternate member of the Zoning Board of Adjustment, a member of 
the Budget Committee and a Realtor in Town.  Mr. Steiner asked the acreage of the lot.  Mr. 
McAllister answered 1.65 acres.  Mr. Steiner stated he has a piece of land where the former Pines 
Lodge was located that could be used for Auto Zone, or the Homestead building could be moved 
onto.  Mr. Steiner stated the owner of the Homestead property has the right to do what he is 
doing, but he should have done some research.     
 
Ms. Beals stated she feels some sense of hope that Mr. McAllister can communicate with those 
involved with this site and organize something with the community.  Ms. Beals stated that she 
would also like to communicate with the Board that we need protective tools to save our visual 
and architectural aspects; there are other communities who have done this so it does not need to 
be recreated.  Marie Meunier, former owner of Wild Things, stated this would be a disaster to 
move this one piece; she lives in Echo Acres and she is not happy with the traffic situation.   
 
Mr. Drinkhall asked for any further public comment; there was none.  Mr. Drinkhall closed 
public comment at 7:42 pm. 
 
Mr. Drinkhall stated he is not happy with what is happening either, but it is not in this Board’s 
purview.  Mr. Porter stated this subject will be on the April 26th Board of Selectmen’s agenda.  
Mr. Porter stated he never thought he would see the day that the Homestead Restaurant would 
disappear.  Mr. Porter stated he would like to extend an invitation to all to the April 26th Board of 
Selectmen’s meeting; if we cannot preserve this spot there are others that need to be preserved.  



Adopted: April 28, 2016 – As Written 
CONWAY PLANNING BOARD – APRIL 14, 2016 

PAGE 4 OF 6 

 

Mr. Porter stated this is a great wake up call for the community; with citizen support we can get 
this done and have something for the next generation to appreciate.   
 
Mr. Shakir stated considering plan B, from a construction standpoint and an owner’s standpoint, 
this is not an insurmountable problem; to minimize impact, put the building on a temporary 
movable structure which is ready to move when enough funds are raised to move it to a site.  Mr. 
Irving stated we don’t regulate how the construction takes place, construction sequencing is left 
up to the property owner.   
 
Mr. Drinkhall opened public comment again at 7:52 pm; Mr. Lathrop asked what is the process 
that will be used to evaluate the impact of traffic; that has to be a consideration, and if it isn’t 
then he doesn’t understand it.  Mr. Lathrop stated wouldn’t it be better to everyone if the 
building set further back on the property.  Mr. Lathrop stated he understands that will require 
more excavation, but it would seem if it had to be there you would minimize the traffic situation 
and move it back so it is more aesthetically pleasing.  Mr. Lathrop stated however you situate the 
entrance, the entrance to Echo Acres Road, the 99 Restaurant and the Dunkin Donuts sites needs 
to be optimized.   
 
Mr. Sares stated to him the more ideal plan is that the Homestead stays where it is and Auto 
Zone goes someplace else like Eastman Road.  Mr. Sares stated he does not like to compromise.  
Ms. Barnes asked if the owner could be made aware of the community value; and if they are 
trying to run a business they have people who are watching.  Ms. Barnes stated there is a certain 
amount of PR that they should be thinking about it.  Mr. Drinkhall asked for any further public 
comment; there was none.  Mr. Drinkhall closed the public comment at 7:56 pm. 
 
Mr. Shakir stated it would seem to him that Auto Zone would have done an extensive marketing 
study and where the store location would give the biggest profit, and it probably indicated that it 
would be far more successful at this location.  Mr. Shakir stated if we can get both sides on board 
it could benefit both parties.  Mr. Sares stated that is pure speculation and he has seen some 
marketing studies that have fell on their face; we should keep the Homestead where it is and 
move Auto Zone to Eastman Road.   
 
Mr. Irving stated in regards to the setbacks, the setbacks are established in the zoning ordinance 
which is adopted by the voters at the town meeting.  Mr. Irving stated the setback in this district 
is 25-feet from the right-of-way and they meet that setback.  Mr. Irving stated there is also a 
buffer requirement and they meet that requirement.  Mr. Irving stated the ordinance only allows 
the Board to increase the buffer if the property abuts a residential property; the abutters to this 
property are restaurants or a resort which does not allow the Board to increase the buffer.   
 
Mr. Irving stated in regards to traffic, he received a (and read the attached) response from David 
Silva of the New Hampshire Department of Transportation.  Mr. Irving stated he received (and 
read the attached) petition from 28 property owners on Echo Acres Road.  Mr. Irving stated the 
State has heard the concerns and have made the determination that Auto Zone has a lower traffic 
count then the restaurant.  Mr. Irving stated they don’t look at restaurants that are not doing well, 
but rather what an expected trip generation is for a use.   



Adopted: April 28, 2016 – As Written 
CONWAY PLANNING BOARD – APRIL 14, 2016 

PAGE 5 OF 6 

 

Mr. Hartmann asked if there is a residential structure on the HillBilly’s site.  Mr. Irving stated it 
is a commercial site with a residential building and to move the proposed building back on the 
site would move it closer to the residential building on the HillBilly’s site.  Mr. Hartmann asked 
if the window waiver strictly pertains to the back wall that is being used for a retaining wall.  Mr. 
McAllister answered in the affirmative.   
 
Mr. Irving read the waiver requests for §123-20.F/§131-67.C.8.e.; §123-20.F/§131-67.C.8.f.; 
§123-20.G; §123-28; §123-29.D.6; and §123-30.A.3.  Mr. Hartmann made a motion, 
seconded by Mr. Shakir, to accept the waiver requests for §123-20.F/§131-67.C.8.e.; §123-
20.F/§131-67.C.8.f.; §123-20.G; §123-28; §123-29.D.6; and §123-30.A.3.  Motion 
unanimously carried. 
 
Mr. Porter made a motion, seconded by Mr. Shakir, to conditionally approve the Full Site 
Plan for Fram Real Estate Investment Co. LLC conditionally upon Town Engineer 
Approval; North Conway Fire Chief Approval; North Conway Water Precinct Approval; 
NHDOT Driveway Permit and indicating approval number on plan; submitting a recorded 
utility easement and indicate book and page on plan; revising snow storage areas and snow 
storage removal notes on plan; labeling propane tank and delineating gas line to building 
on plan; revising Waivers Granted Table as necessary; submitting payment of any 
supplemental review fees; submitting payment for any Engineering Review fees; 
submitting four copies of revised plans with required signatures and certifications; a 
performance guarantee for all site improvements; when the conditions have been met the 
plans can be signed out-of-session; and this conditional approval will expire on April 13, 
2017.  Motion unanimously carried. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING – TREE REMOVAL ON A SCENIC ROAD – RSA 231:158 
 
This is a public hearing for the removal of trees along a designated scenic road, West Side Road, 
to facilitate utility services.  The public hearing opened at 8:31 pm.  Bob Berner, Arborist for 
Eversource, appeared before the Board.  Mr. Irving stated this is along the southern portion of 
West Side Road.  Mr. Berner stated there are 12 trees along West Side Road that have growth 
defects and/or diseased.  Mr. Berner stated they will obtain property owner approval before 
cutting any trees.   
 
Mr. Hartmann stated once we grant approval you then contact the property owner; what if they 
don’t grant permission.  Mr. Berner stated if we don’t gain the property owner’s approval we 
won’t cut it.  Mr. Shakir asked how many of the 12 trees are on private property.  Mr. Berner 
answered about one-half are located on private property.   
 
Mr. Shakir asked if they are in a position to offer the property owner a replacement tree.  Mr. 
Berner answered if necessary and needed, yes, but most are dead.  Mr. Shakir asked what if you 
have to remove a healthy tree.  Mr. Berner stated it is usually done on a one-on-one basis, but 
with this particular project there are no healthy trees targeted.   
 



Adopted: April 28, 2016 – As Written 
CONWAY PLANNING BOARD – APRIL 14, 2016 

PAGE 6 OF 6 

 

Mr. Shakir made a motion, seconded by Mr. Porter, to approve the proposed tree removal 
and trimming that is within its jurisdiction pursuant to RSA 231:158.  Motion unanimously 
carried.   
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
April 26th Board of Selectmen’s Meeting:  Mr. Porter stated he thinks it would be worthwhile 
for members of the Planning Board to attend the Board of Selectmen’s meeting on April 26th.   
 
Meeting adjourned at 8:48 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Holly L. Meserve 
Recording Secretary 




















